
  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 4 
April 2, 2018 

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, April 2, 2018 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Porter 
 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to attend all 
meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a Public Hearing is 
scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. March 19, 2018 City Council Minutes 
 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in nature and 
for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the Consent Agenda may be 
removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All remaining items of the Consent Agenda are 
then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will 
then poll the council members individually by a roll call vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda 
is then voted on individually by roll call vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, 
resolutions, and other supporting materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. 
Third Avenue, Stayton, or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you require special 
accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa Angelo at (503) 769-3425. 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
April 2, 2018 

BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR 
a. Child Abuse Prevention Proclamation by Mayor Henry Porter 
b. Presentation from the Marion County Child Abuse Prevention Team  
 
PUBLIC HEARING – NONE  
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – NONE  
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Proposed Lease for Teen Center Located at Mill Creek Park    Action 
a. Staff Report – Keith Campbell 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Ordinance No. 1018, Establishing Licensing Requirements and Standards for  Action 
Mobile Food Units 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Report on Current Housing Inventory       Informational 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman and Isaac Kort-Meade 
 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS – NONE  
 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR 
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
April 2, 2018 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – April 16, 2018 
a. Water Management and Conservation Plan 
b. Economic Development Study 
c. Drug Take-Back 
d. Stayton Family Memorial Pool Update 
e. Award of Bid – Paving 
f. Proposed Downtown Code Amendments 
g. Transportation System Plan Citizen Advisory Committee 
 
 
ADJOURN



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
April 2, 2018 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
APRIL 2018 

Monday April 2 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday April 3 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday April 10 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday April 13 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday April 16 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday April 18 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday April 30 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

MAY 2018 
Tuesday May 1 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday May 7 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday May 7 City Council Upon Adjournment of Budget Committee 
Tuesday May 8 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday May 11 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday May 14 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 15 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday May 16 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday May 16 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday May 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday May 31 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MEMORIAL DAY HOLIDAY 
Tuesday May 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

JUNE 2018 
Monday June 4 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday June 5 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday June 8 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday June 12 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday June 18 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday June 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday June 25 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

JULY 2018 
Monday July 2 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday July 3 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Wednesday July 4 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF FOURTH OF JULY HOLIDAY 
Tuesday July 10 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday July 13 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday July 16 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday July 18 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday July 30 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 1 of 5 
March 19, 2018 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Action Minutes 

March 19, 2018 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End: 8:38 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell (joined at 7:20 p.m.) Keith Campbell, City Manager 
Councilor Mark Kronquist Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Christopher Molin Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor Brian Quigley  Janna Moser, Library Director 
Councilor Joe Usselman Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
None. 
None. 

Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. James Loftus 

 
 
 
 

b. Steve Poisson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c. Anthony Behrens  
 
 
 

d. Teri and Jon Mesa 

  
Mr. Loftus expressed shared his opinion on the 
situation between the City and PacifiCorp. He 
provided staff with two documents which he 
requested be entered into the record.  
 
Mr. Poisson, Vice President of the Friends of Old 
Town Stayton (FOTS), discussed proposed new 
ordinances for the downtown core of Stayton 
which had been provided to the Council. The FOTS 
group requested Council direct staff to bring these 
back to Council in the form of an Ordinance.  
 
Council discussion of proposed ordinances.  
 
Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by 
Councilor Usselman, to direct staff to review and 
bring back to the Council. Motion passed 4:0. 
 
Mr. Behrens is running for Marion County Circuit 
Court Judge and shared information about himself 
and why he’s running for office. 
 
The Mesa’s own three downtown businesses. They 
spoke about the smoking issue in the downtown 
area.  
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 2 of 5 
March 19, 2018 

Consent Agenda 
a. February 20, 2018 City Council Minutes 
b. OLCC Annual License Renewals 

 
Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by 
Councilor Molin, to approve the consent agenda. 
Motion passed 5:0.  
 

Business from the Mayor 
a. Appointment of David Patty to the Budget Committee 

 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Kronquist, to ratify the appointment of 
David Patty to the Budget Committee. Motion 
passed 5:0.  
 

Public Hearing 
Ordinance No. 1016, Amending Land Use Code Regarding 
Detached Single Family Dwellings that are Nonconforming Uses 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing  

 
 
 
 

b. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
 

c. Questions from the Council 
 
 
 
 

d. Proponents’ Testimony 
 
 

e. Opponents’ Testimony 
f. Governmental Agencies 
g. General Testimony 
h. Questions from the Public 
i. Questions from the Council 
j. Staff Summary 
k. Close of Hearing 
l. Council Deliberation 

 
m. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 1016 
 
 
 
 
Ordinance No. 1017, Amending Land Use Code Regarding 
Effective Dates, Expiration of Approvals, Preliminary Subdivision 
and Partition Plans, and Submission of Construction Plans and 
Final Plats 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing  

 
b. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 

 

 
 
 
Mayor Porter opened the hearing at 7:25 p.m. 
Councilor Kronquist declared he has detached 
dwellings behind his property but this will not 
create a bias. 
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed his staff report.  
 
Councilor Quigley inquired if a zone change is 
needed. Mr. Fleishman shared the Planning 
Commission felt the same and this is something 
staff will be addressing. 
 
Justin Barrett, 1593 N. Third Avenue, spoke in 
favor of the code change. 
 
None. 
None. 
None. 
None. 
None. 
Nothing further. 
Mayor Porter closed the hearing at 7:35 p.m. 
None. 
 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Kronquist, to approve the first 
consideration of Ordinance No. 1016. Motion 
passed 5:0. 
 
 
 
 
 
Mayor Porter opened the hearing at 7:37 p.m.  
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report.  
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 3 of 5 
March 19, 2018 

c. Questions from the Council 
 
 
d. Proponents’ Testimony 

 
 

 
 

e. Opponents’ Testimony 
f. Governmental Agencies 
g. General Testimony 
h. Questions from the Public 
i. Questions from the Council 

 
j. Staff Summary 

 
k. Close of Hearing 

 
l. Council Deliberation 

 
m. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 1017 
 
 

Discussion of changes and the pending subdivision 
that hasn’t submitted approved plans.  
 
Bill Martinak, 15556 Coon Hollow Road, Sublimity, 
asked several questions and requested clarification 
of the proposed changes. He spoke in favor of 
cleaning up the code.  
 
None. 
None. 
None. 
None. 
None. 
 
Mr. Fleishman provided a brief summary. 
 
Mayor Porter closed the hearing at 8:09 p.m. 
 
None. 
 
Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by 
Councilor Usselman, to approve the first 
consideration of Ordinance No. 1017. Motion 
passed 5:0. 
 

Unfinished Business None. 
New Business 
Resolution No. 973, Community Garden Relocation 
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 

 
b. Council Deliberation 

 
c. Council Decision 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 974, Resolution Supporting Friends of Old Town 
Stayton’s Application for Participating in Main Street Status 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman and Isaac Kort-Meade 

 
b. Council Deliberation 
 
 
 
c. Council Decision 

 
 
Mr. Ludwick reviewed his staff report. 
 
Council discussion of community garden plot fees. 
 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Glidewell, to approve Resolution No. 
973. Motion passed 5:0.  
 
 
 
Mr. Kort-Meade reviewed the staff report.  
 
Councilor Kronquist and Councilor Glidewell both 
declared they live in the area but it will not affect 
their decision.  
 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Usselman, to approve Resolution No. 
974. Motion passed 5:0. 
 
 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 4 of 5 
March 19, 2018 

Staff / Commission Reports  
Finance Department Report – Cindy Chauran & Elizabeth Baldwin 
a. February 2018 Monthly Finance Department Report 

 
Police Chief’s Report – Chief Rich Sebens 
a. February 2018 Statistical Report 
 
 
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Lance Ludwick 
a. February 2018 Operating Report  
 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman 
a. February 2018 Activities Report 
 
 
Library Director’s Report – Janna Moser  
a. February 2018 Activities 

 
 
No discussion. 
 
 
Chief Sebens briefly reviewed his report. He also 
discussed the recent rise of fraudulent phone calls, 
specifically to the elderly.  
 
 
Mr. Ludwick reviewed his report. 
 
 
Mr. Fleishman spoke about the award of the 
Community Development Block Grant for Housing 
Rehabilitation.  
 
Ms. Moser reviewed her report. The first week of 
March the Library held Food for Fines which led to 
342 pounds of food which were donated to the 
Stayton Food Bank.   
 

Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Dan Morgan 

 
Mr. Morgan inquired if any Mill Creek Park Design 
meetings had been scheduled and if the City knew 
whether the mobile home on the property would 
remain with the development of the park. Mr. 
Ludwick stated no meetings have been scheduled 
at this time and the Consultants are in the 
conceptual design phase and nothing has been 
confirmed on whether the home will stay on the 
property.   
 
There was further discussion with Chief Sebens 
about the Teen Center working with the City 
regarding information on the nearby drug house. 
  

Business from the City Manager Mr. Campbell recognized Public Works Supervisor 
Tom Etzel who was recently awarded as the 
Oregon Association of Water Utilities (OAWU) 
Operator of the Year. In addition the City was 
awarded the best surface water in Oregon by 
OAWU. 
 
The City was also recently recognized for the 
second year in a row with the Distinguished 
Budget Award by the Government Finance Officers 
Association (GFOA). 
 

Business from the Mayor None. 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 5 of 5 
March 19, 2018 

Business from the Council Councilor Glidewell inquired about the City 
Attorney appointed to Stayton. Mr. Campbell 
responded.  

Future Agenda Items – Monday, April 2, 2018 
a. Housing Study 
b. Food Carts 
c. Library Roof 
APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 2ND DAY OF APRIL 2018, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 
 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Manager 
       
Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



City of Stayton 
Administration • Finance 

362 N. Third Avenue • Stayton, OR 97383 
Phone: (503) 769-3425 • Fax (503) 769-1456 

 

POLICE 
386 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-3423 
 FAX (503) 769-7497 

PLANNING 
362 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-2998 
FAX (503) 767-2134 

PUBLIC WORKS 
362 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-2919 
FAX (503) 767-2134 

WASTEWATER 
950 JETTERS WAY 

STAYTON, OR 97383 
(503) 769-2810 

FAX (503) 769-7413 

LIBRARY 
515 N. FIRST AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-3313 
FAX (503) 769-3218 

 

City of Stayton, Marion County, Oregon 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
This matter came before the City of Stayton Mayor and Council at its regularly scheduled 
meeting of April 2, 2018, to proclaim April as Child Abuse Prevention Month. 
 
WHEREAS, every child deserves to live in a safe, loving and caring family environment; 
 
WHEREAS, in 2017 there were 11,843 reported victims of child abuse and neglect in Oregon, 
and of those reported cases, 1,255 were victims in Marion County, and 49 of those victims were 
from Stayton; 
 
WHEREAS, we endeavor to join together as individuals, organizations, and government agencies 
to prevent child abuse in our county by providing opportunities to educate, train, and support 
caregivers by raising awareness of relevant topics, including child development, basic-care 
skills, discipline strategies, and goal-setting for parents; and, 
 
WHEREAS, by strengthening families and providing safe, stable, and nurturing environments 
that are free from violence, abuse, and neglect, opportunities are created for children’s optimal 
growth and success, ensuring a secure future for our communities, where the needs of children 
are a priority and the needs of families are met. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the City of Stayton Mayor and Councilors asks everyone to join together in 
protecting our children, and do hereby proclaim April 2018, as 
 

“CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH” 
 

Dated at Stayton, Oregon, this 2nd day of April, 2018. 
 
 

             
Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

 



 
Proposed Lease for Teen Center Located at Mill Creek Park Page 1 of 2  
April 2, 2018 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Keith Campbell, City Manager  
 
DATE:   April 2, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Proposed Lease for Teen Center located at Mill Creek Park 
  
     
ISSUE 

Should the City lease the Puntney House located at 2800 Kindle Way to New Growth for a Teen 
Center? 
 
ENCLOSURE(S) 

1. Proposed Lease 
2. Materials provided by New Growth  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

In April 2017, the City took possession of a triple-wide mobile home located at 2800 Kindle 
Way. The home is 2,071 square feet, consisting of three bedrooms and two bathrooms, and 
located in what will be the new Mill Creek Park. The City solicited ideas for use of the home 
while it sat vacant during the planning stages for Mill Creek Park. Councilor Glidewell suggested 
a Teen Center and began coordinating a conglomeration of local faith-based organizations to 
come together to use the house for a Teen Center.  
 
On February 22, 2018, the City in collaboration with AKS Engineering, held its first community 
meeting for the planning of Mill Creek Park. Due to the conditions and limitations that will be 
placed on the park and the area flood plain, there is a strong likelihood the house will not be 
part of the final park design. This reality has been made clear beginning early on in 
conversations with New Growth. The priorities of the future park will come first. Even if the 
house is not part of the final design, it may be several years before the house would need to be 
moved. The house is a mobile home and the lease provides New Growth for a right of first 
refusal to acquire the home. 
 
The proposed Teen Center will be located near a home that has been identified as a drug 
house. The owner of said drug house was recently sentenced to twenty-six months in jail. In 
recent months community members from the neighborhood have come to the City Council to 
express their apprehension of a Teen Center being located near a drug house. On March 23rd, 



 
Proposed Lease for Teen Center Located at Mill Creek Park Page 2 of 2  
April 2, 2018 

the leaders of New Growth held a neighborhood meeting to discuss their proposal and to hear 
the concerns of the neighborhood. This meeting was described as productive and positive. The 
Police Department is aware and understands the concerns of the local neighborhood, and is still 
working to address any ongoing activity in the drug house. The Police Department feels the 
Teen Center should have a positive impact in the neighborhood.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

The fiscal impact is essentially one of opportunity costs. As such the fiscal impact is minimal. 
The City had no intent or plans for the house. The interest for the City was the land for the park. 
This lease would prevent the building from being used for other unknown purposes. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Governing Body approve the lease with New Growth. 
 
MOTION(S) 

1. Adopt the lease agreement with New Growth as presented. 

Motion to approve the lease agreement with New Growth as presented. 
 
2. Adopt the lease agreement with New Growth with modifications as directed. 

Motion to approve the lease agreement with New Growth with the following 
modifications        . 

 
3. Take no action on the lease agreement with New Growth.  

No motion necessary. 



 
Lease Agreement – New Growth  Page 1 of 2  
2800 Kindle Way SE, Stayton 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

This agreement made and entered into this   day of     2018, between the STAYTON, 
hereinafter referred to as the "CITY" and NEW GROWTH MINISTRIES, hereinafter referred to as "NEW 
GROWTH.” 
 
It is hereby agreed between the parties as follows: 
 
1. LEASE:  The CITY agrees to lease the City owned building located at 2800 Kindle Way SE, aka the 

PUNTNEY PROPERTY, to NEW GROWTH for a period of 3 years, commencing at the above date. 

2. COST:  NEW GROWTH shall pay the CITY $1.00 per year beginning at the time of the executed 
agreement. 

3. FAITH BASED:  NEW GROWTH will be operated by a faith based organization, but this agreement 
does not allow, in any manner, for the building to be used for the promulgation of religious doctrine. 

4. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR: NEW GROWTH agrees to be responsible for all routine interior 
maintenance and repair of the building during the term of this agreement. The CITY shall be 
responsible for the exterior maintenance of the park space (mowing, and grounds maintenance.) 
NEW GROWTH shall be responsible for the care and maintenance of the building and attached 
decks. NEW GROWTH shall keep records of all repairs and shall keep the building interior in good 
order and safe condition and shall notify City staff in writing at City Hall of any exterior deficiency, 
vandalism, or defect. NEW GROWTH shall pay all utilities for the building. 

5. ADA: NEW GROWTH shall be solely responsible for bringing the subject property up to compliance 
with the ADA assessment completed by the Northwest ADA Center for all publicly accessible spaces 
on said property. All work must follow local, state, and federal law and must be permitted, 
completed, and inspected prior to occupancy by the public. 

6. TAXES: NEW GROWTH should be an entity for benefit, not for profit corporation and be granted IRS 
501(C)(3) tax exemption status. If NEW GROWTH does not have that status then it will be required 
to pay any property tax that might be assessed against the property due to their occupancy. 

7. TERMINATION:  In the event the CITY requires the use of the building, or if the building needs to be 
removed from the location or NEW GROWTH should decide to vacate the building, written notice to 
terminate at least thirty (30) days prior to the termination date shall be provided to the other party 
of the agreement. Termination can occur at any time, and for any reason or purpose. 

8. RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL:  If the CITY elects to move the building from the current location, NEW 
GROWTH will have the right of first refusal on purchase of the mobile structure. 

9. FIRE INSURANCE:  NEW GROWTH shall maintain fire insurance with the CITY listed as the beneficiary 
on the building during the term of this agreement and NEW GROWTH shall be responsible for the 
fire insurance costs.  

10. UNLAWFUL USE:  NEW GROWTH agrees to make no unlawful use of the building during the term of 
this agreement. NEW GROWTH must fully comply with all City zoning and building code regulations, 
including parking and access management. NEW GROWTH will follow all local, state and federal 
laws. 



 
Lease Agreement – New Growth  Page 2 of 2  
2800 Kindle Way SE, Stayton 

11. LIABILITY: NEW GROWTH shall defend, indemnify, and hold the CITY harmless against all liability, 
loss, or expenses, including attorney fees, against all claims, actions, or judgment's based upon or 
attributed to the negligence of NEW GROWTH, its agents, employees, or invitees. 

12. INSURANCE:  NEW GROWTH shall be insured by an insurance company licensed to conduct a liability 
insurance business in the State of Oregon for not less than $1,000,000, and naming the CITY as an 
additional insured. A current certificate evidencing this insurance shall remain on file with the CITY. 

13. SUBLEASE: It is understood that NEW GROWTH shall not allow other organizations or persons to 
sublease the premises during the term of this agreement. 

14. AMENDMENTS: This agreement may be amended at any time during the term of the agreement 
upon the mutual consent of both parties.  

15. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: In the event a dispute arises between the parties as to the terms of this 
Agreement, the matter shall first be addressed through mandatory mediation. If not settled by 
mediation, the parties shall resolve the matter by binding arbitration in accordance with Oregon 
laws. In the event either party brings action to enforce the terms of this Lease or to seek damages 
for its breach, or arising out of any dispute concerning the terms and conditions hereby created, the 
prevailing party hall be entitled to an award of its reasonable attorney fees, costs, and expenses, 
incurred therein, including such costs and fees as may be required by on appeal. Venue shall be in 
the Circuit Court of Marion County, Oregon. 

16. NOTICES: Any notices that either party desires to give the other shall be given by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, addressed as follows (changes of address shall be promptly provided to 
the other party): 

 
CITY:  City of Stayton   NEW GROWTH:  New Growth 

362 N. Third Avenue     198 Fern Ridge Rd. SE 
Stayton, OR 97383-1726    Stayton, OR 97383-6144 

 
 
CITY OF STAYTON 
 
By:__________________________________________ 
 Keith D. Campbell, City Manager 
 
NEW GROWTH MINISTRIES AKA “NEW GROWTH” 
 
By:_____________________________________________ 

President 
 









































































































































 

December 11, 2017 

To whom it may concern, 
  
Over my last 10 years in Stayton, I’ve served the community as a youth pastor, youth baseball 
coach, youth basketball coach, middle school basketball coach, high school golf coach and 
CHIP team member focusing on youth health issues in our region. I feel like I have a good 
handle on what it’s like to be a youth in our area and the issues and pitfalls they face.  
 That’s why I’m writing to give my support for the start of a teen center in Stayton. A 
teen center has the potential to bring health to many of the ills our youth face. It fills a void in  
a town that has limited activities and spaces designed to engage youth after school. It can 
become a safe and supervised hangout. And, it has the potential for students to be tutored or 
to have access to a counselor. Perhaps it will be a place for some students to share a meal with 
other community members, rather than going without a meal or going alone. It can be a place 
where teens participate in workshops that will further their education, skills, and job training 
to propel them into adulthood.  
 I see so many overwhelming positives when I think of the potential of a teen center in 
Stayton. It’s easy to get excited and dream about the impact it will have on the community at 
large, the families that will access it, and the youth themselves who will flourish because of it.  
  
 
        Sincerely, 
         

        Tyler Butenschoen 
        Lead Pastor



1450 Fern Ridge Road SE 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

(503) 769-5700 

As a spiritual community, our mission is to 
 grow in our Love of God, Relationships with Others, and Service to the Community  

December 8, 2017 
 
To whom it may concern: 
 

 I am writing you to support the Santiam Teen Center 
being developed for our community. As a pastor, I know 
the importance of providing a safe, supervised place for 
teens to gather and feel welcomed. Time spent caring 
about our youth now will make a huge difference in their 
lives. I applaud the city's forethought in providing the 
space. 
 

 The Stayton United Methodist  Church is an active 
participant in making this community a livable place for 
everyone. We value working with partners around the area 
to make the teen center a reality, and we look forward to 
supporting this endeavor.  
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 

Pastor Janine DeLaunay 



RE: Support Letter 
 
As a member of the Santiam Teen Center board, I support the teen center as described in the 
New Growth Ministry's Mission and Vision statements. I believe in the vision of building future 
generations by providing a safe and supportive environment that promotes self-development 
through positive influences. 
 
As a parent of two teens in the Stayton community, I see the Teen Center as a place my teens 
can go to get support from other teens who may be going through similar circumstances, as well 
as seeking advice from an experienced mentor that can help teens through a crisis. I believe the 
faith-based community can bring a sense of continuity and exposure to faith by providing 
services such as periodic meals and activities, and possibly a Director to manage the 
day-to-day operations. That said, I believe the image of the teen center should not be 
faith-based. Most teens that haven't been exposed to any sort of faith will turn away from it (like 
a Youth Group or Young Life center), potentially turning away a teen in crisis. For this reason, I 
am hopeful our non-faith community members have as much involvement as our faith-based 
ones.  
 
I look forward to continuing our efforts in establishing the Santiam Teen Center. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Sandra Fixsen 
503-508-2946 
 



625 Union St NE Salem, OR  97301 / #503.391.6428  / hyrc@mwvcaa.org  

Serving at-risk, homeless, runaway and street youth in Marion and Polk Counties, Oregon 

Community Action’s Mission: Empowering people to change their lives and exit poverty by 

providing vital services and community leadership.  

www.mycommunityaction.org  

 

December 7, 2017  

 

Dear City of Stayton,  

It is with great pleasure that I write this letter of support of the work Pastor Hazel (Calvary 

Lutheran Church) and the Stayton faith community is doing for the community. We were 

approached by a mutual friend a few months back to see if we would be willing to meet with 

the Stayton team and of course we accepted. After spending time with them it was clear 

that they have the determination and heart it takes to run a youth drop in. Since 1994 

HOME has been operating the drop in located in downtown Salem and has served 

thousands of youth during that time. We are honored to mentor the Stayton team in 

developing another resource for the County.  

 

The need is great. According to the Oregon Department of Education, the North Santiam 

school district had 67 homeless minors during the 2016—2017 school year. As with Salem, 

this does not include the number of youth who are disconnected from school or the youth 

who are at-risk of becoming homeless. Homeless youth are not the only population that 

utilizes drop in centers so the reach is widespread. Studies show programs based on 

Positive Youth Development are effective in preventing homelessness and building 

protective factors aiding in the long term success of individuals and in turn, the 

community. The investments will pay off.  

 

Best,  

Tricia Ratliff  

Community Action HOME Youth & Resource Center 

Program Director  

 

 





December 14, 2017 
  
Dear City of Stayton, 
 
It is my pleasure to write a letter in support of the work of New Growth Ministries and 
the proposed Santiam Teen Center the City of Stayton is considering opening up near 
the Middle School. 
 
Mother Teresa once said, “The hunger for love is much more difficult to remove than 
the hunger for bread.” Our Santiam Canyon Catholic Vicariate supports the wellbeing 
of every individual- mind, body, and spirit. The vicariate includes of Immaculate 
Conception Parish (Stayton & Mill City), Our Lady of Lourdes Parish (Jordan & 
Lyons), St. Boniface Church (Sublimity), and St. Mary’s Church (Shaw) and ministers 
to nearly 2,000 parishioners across this extensive geographic area. As a fully Catholic 
institution, it is our mission to serve the needs of others and assist the faithful in their 
spiritual growth. We serve people across a wide socioeconomic range, from potential 
victims to volunteers eagerly awaiting opportunities to become engaged in service in 
the Santiam Canyon. 
We believe in living as disciples of Jesus Christ in the world which includes service to 
our broader community. Our Youth Ministry Coordinator has extensive experience 
working with homeless youth and with anti-human trafficking agencies and is an 
advocate for providing resources and services to youth. It is well known that Portland, 
OR has one of the highest rates of youth sex trafficking. Considering our close 
proximity to the I-5 corridor and the rural nature of this vicariate, we are concerned 
about those youth that are at a higher risk of falling victim to trafficking. Having a safe 
place available for youth to spend time after school is of paramount importance in 
providing all of the youth in Stayton and the Santiam Canyon the opportunity to 
develop into the next generation of leaders. 
In conclusion, we fully support any program designed to cultivate the love of our 
neighbors in the Santiam Canyon. Therefore we support the proposal and encourage 
the City of Stayton to approve the request for the New Growth Teen Center. 
  
Sincerely, 
Rev. Luan Nguyen 
Pastor of Immaculate Conception Catholic Church 
1077 N 6th Ave 

Stayton, OR 97383 

503- 769-2656 

https://maps.google.com/?q=1077+N+6th+Ave+Stayton,+OR+97383&entry=gmail&source=g
https://maps.google.com/?q=1077+N+6th+Ave+Stayton,+OR+97383&entry=gmail&source=g
tel:(503)%20769-2656








CITY OF STAYTON 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 
Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
Keith D Campbell, City Manager 

DATE: April 2, 2018 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 1018 Establishing Licensing Requirements and 
Standards for Mobile Food Units 

ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is consideration of enactment of amendments to the Business 
Licenses, Permits, and Regulations Code regarding mobile food units. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The arrival of mobile food units, or food trucks, in Stayton is a relatively recent phenomenon.  

While City staff welcomes the addition of food trucks to the business activity within the city, 
concern has been raised about the possible impacts of these business on traffic flow, public 
safety and compliance with the City’s land use code. 

Therefore staff has developed Ordinance 1018 to establish a requirement for mobile food units 
to obtain a license or permit from the City.  A license, under this ordinance, would only be 
required for a vehicle that is used for the purpose preparing, and selling food for immediate 
consumption as a drive-in, drive-through, curb or walk-up service.  A license would not be 
required for stationary sales operations such as lemonade stands or where there is no 
preparation of the item such as the ice cream truck. 

Staff has shared the proposed ordinance with several food truck operators and with the owners 
of properties that have been hosting food trucks.  As of writing this staff report no comments 
have been received. 

PROPOSED REGULATIONS 

In summary, the proposed rules would require a license for any mobile food unit.  Prior to 
issuing the license, the operator would need to demonstrate they have the necessary health 
and sanitary license from Marion County.  Mobile food units would be permitted only in the 
zones of the city where eating and drinking establishments are permitted or at manufacturing 
sites when the customers are primarily employees of the industry.  Mobile food units would not 



 
 

be permitted in a street right of way unless part of an event with a street closure. The location 
of a mobile food unit must not block a sidewalk, drivers’ vision, or required off-street parking 
spaces for other uses on the property.  The proposed rules clarify that any unit that is in place 
for more than 72 hours must receive the necessary approval under the City’s Land Use and 
Development Code.  

The Code already specifies that fees for licenses and permits will be established by the City 
Council by resolution.  Once Ordinance 1018 is enacted, staff will return to the Council with a 
resolution establishing the fee for the required license. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends enactment of Ordinance 1018 as presented.   

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1018 

Move to approve Ordinance No 1018 as presented. 
The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall be recorded 
in the meeting minutes. If the vote is unanimous, Ordinance No. 1018 is enacted and will be presented to the 
Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance No. 1018 will be brought before the Council for a second 
consideration at the April 16, 2018 meeting.  

2. Approve the Ordinance with modifications  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 1018 with the following changes … and direct staff to 
incorporate these changes into the Ordinance before the Ordinance is presented to the City 
Council for a second consideration. 
The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall be recorded 
in the meeting minutes. If the first consideration is approved, Ordinance No. 1018 will be brought before the 
Council for a second consideration at its April 16, 2018 meeting.  

3. Retain the Code unchanged 

No motion is necessary.  

 



 

Ordinance No. 1018 Establishing Mobile Food Unit Regulations Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 1018 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 5, 
ESTABLISHING LICENSING REQUIREMENTS FOR MOBILE FOOD UNITS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Stayton has adopted Title 5 of the Stayton Municipal Code (SMC) Regarding 
Business Licenses, Permits and Regulations; 

WHEREAS, mobile food units, also known as food trucks are recent and welcome addition to the mix 
of businesses in the City of Stayton; 

WHEREAS, the location of mobile food units has the potential to create pedestrian and vehicular 
traffic safety concerns; 

WHEREAS, the City is interested in promoting the location of mobile food units but to assure that they 
are in compliance with all provisions of the City’s Code and do not present a safety hazard; and 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council, does find that the amendments in this Ordinance are reasonable 
regulations to promote the public health, safety and welfare. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

Section 1.  Mobile Food Unit Defined.  Stayton Municipal Code Title 5, Chapter 5.04, Section 
5.04.020 is hereby amended by adding the following definition: 

18. MOBILE FOOD UNIT: Any motor vehicle, trailer, or wagon that is used for the 
purpose preparing, processing, or converting food for immediate consumption as a 
drive-in, drive-through, curb or walk-up service.  A mobile food unit does not include a 
street vendor’s cart or a motor vehicle, trailer or wagon used exclusively for selling 
prepackaged food items that are not altered by the vendor (e.g. an ice cream truck) or 
the delivery of preordered food such as pizza or carryout. 

Section 2.  License Required.  Stayton Municipal Code Title 5, Chapter 5.08, Section 5.08.010.1 is 
hereby amended by adding the following Mobile Food Unit as a category of business that requires a 
license or permit: 

1. No person shall engage in any of the following businesses or activities within the City 
limits without first obtaining a license or permit as provided in this Title, except as 
otherwise exempted herein: 

a. Carnival, amusement park, amusement concessionaire; 

b. Junk dealer; 

c. Secondhand Dealer; 

d. Pawn Broker; 

e. Promotional event;  

f. Solicitor; or 

g. Marijuana Dispensary; or 

h. Mobile Food Unit. 

Section 3.  Mobile Food Unit Regulations.  Stayton Municipal Code Title 5, Chapter 5.48 is hereby 
enacted, establishing regulations for the operation of Mobile Food Units: 



 

Ordinance No. 1018 Establishing Mobile Food Unit Regulations Page 2 of 3 

CHAPTER 5.48 

MOBILE FOOD UNITS 

 

5.48.010 REGULATIONS 

1. In addition to the information required by Section 5.08.020, an application for a mobile 
food unit license shall contain documentation that the applicant has obtained all 
required health and sanitary licenses from the State of Oregon and Marion County. 

2. Any mobile food unit that is in place for more than 72 hours without being moved shall 
be considered a land use and require approval under the appropriate provisions of 
Chapter 17.12. 

3. Location. 

(a) Mobile food units may only operate in zones where eating and drinking 
establishments are allowed as a permitted use or use permitted after site plan 
review in Section 17.16.070 or in the parking area of a manufacturing business for 
the purpose of primarily serving the employees of that manufacturing business. 

(b) Mobile food units shall not operate or be located in a public right-of-way. Mobile 
food units may operate on city-owned property provided the licensee is granted a 
site specific permit which shall be displayed conspicuously on-site. 

(c) A mobile food unit may only operate in an approved parking lot, or other hard 
surface area, where the off-street parking requirements for all uses or activities 
served by the off-street parking area are met. 

(d) The location standards of this section do not apply to mobile food units which 
operate as a vendor within an approved community event or where a street closure 
permit is granted under Chapter 10.36. 

4. Standards. 

(a) A mobile food unit, including all items associated with the operation, shall not 
obstruct pedestrian pathways, driveways or drive aisles of any off-street parking 
area and shall not be located in the sight distance triangle as defined in Section 
17.04.100 or so as to create a traffic or safety hazard. 

(c) All mobile food units which are parked in a stationary location for a period of 24 
hours or longer shall provide screening for all conduit, tanks, and storage areas 
from all public areas and streets by sight-obscuring fencing and/or temporary 
landscaping and skirting shall be provided along the perimeter of the mobile food 
unit. 

(d) Mobile food units may not be permanent structures and must remain capable of 
being moved, with wheels attached. 

(e) When a mobile food unit is conducting business, the operators shall pick up any 
paper, cardboard, wood, or plastic containers, wrappers, or any litter which is 
deposited by any person within 50 feet of the mobile food unit. 

 

 



 

Ordinance No. 1018 Establishing Mobile Food Unit Regulations Page 3 of 3 

Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective on the 30th day after adoption by 
the Stayton City Council and execution by the Mayor, or a representative of the Mayor. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 2nd day of April, 2018.  

CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2018 BY: _______________________________ 
 Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

Signed: ____________, 2018 ATTEST: _______________________________ 
 Keith D. Campbell, 
 City Administrator 

 



 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 
  Isaac Kort-Meade, RARE Participant 

 DATE: April 2, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Report on Current Housing Inventory  -- Informational 
  
 

The City Council’s 2017-18 adopted Goals include under the goal of Neighborhood Preservation 
the completion of a Comprehensive Housing Inventory and to identify and create a Housing 
Strategy. 

In response to the Council’s goals staff has completed the attached Housing Study.  The Study 
outlines a number of characteristics of the existing housing within the City.  The information in 
the study comes from a combination of sources including the City’s own data bases and the US 
Census Bureau. 

Some pertinent highlights from the Study: 

 Stayton’s housing stock is relatively new:  only 11% of the housing units were 
constructed prior to 1950. 

 Stayton’s housing is primarily single family:  82% of the housing units are single family 
dwellings 

 Stayton’s housing is in relatively good condition:  only 8% of the housing units were 
rated in average or worse condition based on a fall 2017 windshield survey 

 No multifamily housing has been constructed since 2002 

 The median sales price of a single family home in 2017-2018 is $225,000 

Staff has no recommended actions for the Council, but presents the study in order stimulate 
the Council to raise issues to be addressed as the City continues to implement the Council’s 
goals.   

 



1 
 

Report	on	the	State	of	Housing	in	
Stayton,	OR	

March, 2018 

Table of Contents 
Introduction .................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Who Lives in Stayton? ................................................................................................................................... 2 

General Housing Characteristics ................................................................................................................... 2 

Age of Housing .......................................................................................................................................... 3 

Housing Costs ............................................................................................................................................ 5 

Subsidized Housing ................................................................................................................................... 6 

Household Characteristics ........................................................................................................................ 7 

Types of Housing ....................................................................................................................................... 8 

Vacant Buildable Lots .............................................................................................................................. 11 

Housing Quality ....................................................................................................................................... 11 

Conclusion ................................................................................................................................................... 12 

 

Figure 1: New Homes Each Year (City of Stayton) ........................................................................................ 3 

Figure 2: Map of Residential Buildings by Year Built .................................................................................... 4 

Figure 3: Change in Housing Value over time (Zillow.com) .......................................................................... 5 

Figure 4: Monthly Housing Costs (ACS)......................................................................................................... 6 

Figure 5: Household Size (ACS) ..................................................................................................................... 7 

Figure 6: Residential Structures, by Type (City of Stayton) .......................................................................... 8 

Figure 7: Housing Units, by Type (City of Stayton) ....................................................................................... 8 

Figure 8: Map of Residential Buildings, colored by type ............................................................................ 10 

  



2 
 

Introduction 
Housing in Stayton has long been growing at a rate steady with the population increase in the town. As 

Stayton grew through the early 20th century, local developers built new homes for mill workers and 

farmers. The growth of the Willamette Valley helped increase employment opportunities in Stayton, and 

the post-war housing and population boom increased the number of homes being built. In the past 30 

years, there has been a 15% increase in population, following the general trend of the Salem 

Metropolitan Statistical Area.  

Currently, Stayton has a population of around 7,800 people. Its position in close proximity to Salem 

means that a large percentage of workers commute to Salem for employment. As a result, Stayton’s 

housing stock is developed in a way that eases access to cars and Hwy 22, and does not incorporate the 

values of walkability and proximity to employment centers as a more urban community might. 

This report aims to describe the state of housing in Stayton. It shows that most of the housing stock is 

built for families, of decent quality, and is generally more than 20 years old. The vast majority of housing 

in town is single-family and detached. 

Who Lives in Stayton? 
Stayton’s population has grown by about 1,000 people from the 2000 Census until today. The 2016 U.S. 

Census population estimate 7,875. Portland State University’s Population Forecast Program estimates 

that by 2030, Stayton’s population will grow to 9,065. This represents an increase of about 15%.  

The population is divided nearly equally by gender, with 50.3% Female, and 49.7% Male. The median 

age in Stayton is 34.7 years. 31.4% of Stayton residents are between 20 and 44 years of age. Around 

12.5% of the population is within the retirement age of 65+. 84.3% of Stayton residents are white. The 

next largest racial group is Hispanic non-White, which represents 15% of the population. This 

percentage has stayed relatively steady since the 2010 Census.  

The biggest industries in town are generally “blue collar,” including manufacturing, agriculture, 

construction, retail, and transportation, which comprise around 48% of employed peoples. The median 

household income in 2016 in town is $53,899. About 19% of Stayton families are below the poverty line.  

General Housing Characteristics 
The City of Stayton maintains a database of all building and dwelling units within the city, which is 

updated with each issuance of a building or demolition permit. This data can be used to understand the 

distribution of housing in the city. One limitation of this data is that it includes building permits that 

were issued at the time of analysis, but the structure may not yet have been constructed. To 

supplement this data, numbers from the U.S. Census American Community Survey can be used. 

However, the most recent data (2016) is only an estimate from surveys and projections from the 2010 



3 
 

22

73
37 39

62

126

191

266

486

123

524

336

86

Number of New Homes Built 
in Each Year

census, and typically has a high margin of error.  According to City data, Stayton city contains 3,2581 

housing units in 2,539 individual buildings. ACS estimates that about 5.7% of these currently sit vacant. 

The majority of the housing stock in Stayton is single-family detached homes. ACS estimates that around 

52% of homes in Stayton are owner-occupied, while the other 48% are renter-occupied.  

Age of Housing 
Stayton’s housing stock has been growing at a steadily decreasing rate. Between the founding of the 

town in 1891 and the 1970s, more 

new residential structures were built 

in each year.  Figure 1 shows the total 

number of currently existing homes 

built in each decade since 1900, taken 

from the city’s Building Footprint 

Database. 

Since 2010, the city has only added 86 

new homes, representing a 3.4% 

increase in eight years. Large periods 

of growth happened in Stayton 

between 1970 and 1979 and 1990 

and 1999, with a drop between 1980 

and 1989. The most significant period 

of housing growth in town is the 

1990s, but since then, there have not 

been a significant number of new 

homes or apartments built, especially 

not in the last 8 years. This lack of 

recent growth has meant that the 

majority of the housing stock in Stayton is more than 20 years old. When this data is broken down by 

type of housing, it shows that there has not been a significant new Multi-Family housing project in 

Stayton in more than a decade. Two new developments in town promise to increase the supply of new, 

single family homes.   

Figure 2 shows a map of Stayton with homes colored by the year they were built. This map shows that 

the old buildings are clustered in the historic downtown area, with many newer homes in developments 

outside of the older district. Stayton’s newer homes tend to be built on open properties closer to the 

outskirts of town. However, there are multiple vacant buildable lots closer to the center of town which 

could be filled with new homes (more information can be found in the section Vacant Buildable Lots). 

                                                           
1 Building Footprint Database 

Figure 1: New Homes Each Year (City of Stayton) 



4 
 

  
Figure 2: Map of Residential Buildings, colored by year built 



5 
 

Housing Costs 
The cost of housing in 

Stayton has been rising 

steadily since the 2008 

financial crisis. 

According to the real 

estate website 

Zillow.com, the average 

home value in Stayton is 

around $261,700. This is 

higher than the nearby 

communities of 

Aumsville, Mill City, Scio, 

and Salem, but comes in 

below Sublimity and 

Silverton. Figure 3 shows 

the 10-year trend of housing value in Stayton compared to that of Salem. Both communities have 

followed the same general trend, but Stayton’s overall cost in much higher.  

The Marion County Assessor’s Office releases records of every sale in the county. According to this data, 

the median home price for the 138 homes sold in 2017 and 2018 is $225,000. The 25th percentile is 

$185,000 and the 75th percentile is $273,725. The median is below the estimated average value of 

homes in town.  

The average rental price in Stayton is $824/month, which is comparable to the Salem average of 

$819/month. However, Stayton has a limited number of housing units available. At the time of writing, 

only 4 units were currently available according to the rental website Apartments.com. This is a 

seemingly typical trend within the city, and units that become available get rented very quickly.  

In general, the affordability of housing in the area is dependent on a variety of factors. Comparing 

median household income to average cost of housing is one way to determine the affordability of units. 

By some rules, housing affordability can be defined by spending no more than 30% of one’s income on 

rent or mortgage payments. According to ACS data, about 53.2% of renters in Stayton spend 35% or 

more of their income on rent. This coupled with the high number of locals below the poverty rate, 

shows that many Stayton renters are struggling with housing affordability. 

On the other hand, about 26% of homeowners with a mortgage spend more than 35% of their income 

on housing costs. This represents a stark difference in the income and cost level of renters and 

homeowners in Stayton. The average monthly housing cost for owner-occupied units in Stayton is 

$1251, much higher than the rental cost of $824. Costs for rentals range from less than $300/month to 

as much as $2,000/month. Most renters fall within the $500-$1,500/month range. While monthly costs 

for owners are much higher, owners tend to have a higher income, and in Stayton the vast majority are 

able to afford their monthly payments. Figure 4 shows the estimated monthly housing costs according 

Figure 3: Change in Housing Value over time (Zillow.com) 



6 
 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Less than
$300

$300 to
$499

$500 to
$799

$800 to
$999

$1,000 to
$1,499

$1,500 to
$1,999

$2,000 to
$2,499

$3,000 or
more

No cash
rent

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

To
ta

l

Estimated Monthly Housing Costs in Stayton

% Owner-Occupied Units

% of Rental Units

to the American Community Survey. This shows that owner-occupied units are typically on the higher 

end of cost.  

 

Subsidized Housing 
A large amount of housing in Stayton has been built with government assistance. Stayton’s 2013 

Comprehensive Plan update lists in detail the location and characteristics of these types of projects. The 

following is adapted from that plan.  

The most common type of government assistance is a subsidized mortgage through various state and 

federal programs. However, figures are not available for the number of houses in Stayton financed 

though these programs. Government assisted housing is also provided through subsidies for apartments 

for low and moderate income people. There are 100 dwelling units in seven different developments that 

provide apartments reserved for income-qualifies households. This represents 6.5% of the total housing 

stock, 20% of the rental units and an estimated 34% of the multifamily units in the City. Table 1 lists 

these units, their location, and whether they are for families or restricted to occupancy by elderly 

tenants. 

Table 1: Subsidized Housing Developments in Stayton 

Name Location # of Units Type 

Hollister Apartments 315 W Hollister St 20 Family 

Northridge Apartments 1633 N 3rd Ave 24 Family 

Oak Park Village 1011-1087 N 10th Ave 32 Elderly 

Stayton Elder Manor 660 N Ida St 32 Elderly 

Stayton Manor 820 N 3rd Ave 16 Elderly 

Westside Apartments 965 Gardner Ave 24 Family 

Wolf Ridge Apartments 1301-1371 E Santiam St 51 Family 

Figure 4: Monthly Housing Costs (ACS) 



7 
 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

1 2 3 4+

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

To
ta

l

Number of People in Household

Household Size 

Owner-
Occupied

Rentals

 

Household Characteristics 
Each household in town is designated by the Census Bureau as family or nonfamily. Family households, 

which consist of two or more related people, represent 73.2% of the total households in Stayton. 

Nonfamily households, which consist of one or more unrelated people, represent 26.8%.  

49% of all households in Stayton are composed of a married-couple family. This demographic tends to 

own their own home, which nearly two thirds do. However, when the data is broken down by age, 

younger married couples are more likely to rent than buy, while older couples are the opposite2.   

Single parents make up the rest of the family households, and the majority are single mothers. These 

families tend to rent at a much higher rate than married couples. In fact, nearly one quarter of all 

renters are single mothers, 

while only 12% of owners are 

single mothers.  

Non-family households are 

typically a single person living 

alone. 22% of households fall 

into this demographic. This 

number has fallen from 25% in 

the 2010 census. The majority 

of single people living alone are 

between 35 and 64 years old. 

They tend to rent and buy at 

nearly equal numbers.  

The smallest household 

demographic is non-family and 

not living alone. This type of 

housing represents two or 

more unrelated people living 

together. This group would likely be more common in a large urban area or a town with a university. 

This demographic disproportionately rents, representing around 9% of all renters while they only make 

up 5% of the total population.  

Household size is also a good indicator of the characteristics of household groups. Figure 5 shows the 

number of people in each household in Stayton, grouped into renters and owners. Owner-occupied 

households are generally smaller than rental households. This is likely because young families with 

                                                           
2 62.5% of married-couple families own their own homes, while 36.7% rent. 4.4% fall into the 15-34 age bracket 
and own their own homes, versus 13.6% who rent. 18.9% of married-couple family households are 65+ and own 
their own homes, while only 3.9% rent.  

Figure 5: Household Size (ACS) 



8 
 

Other
1%

TRI
1%

MFD
3%

MFH
6%

DUP
7%

SFD
82%

Other
1%

TRI
2%

MFH
5%

DUP
11%

MFD
17%

SFD
64%

multiple kids will rent a home or apartment as they get established, while older couples without kids 

living at home will already own a home. This graph also shows that single-person households rent and 

own at about the same rate.  

Types of Housing 
Homes in Stayton are generally Single-Family and detached. This describes the typical house, which 

houses one unit and is separated from neighboring homes. Stayton housing stock is about 82% single 

family detached homes, according to the Building Footprints Database. The chart below shows the 

distribution of housing types across the city. The Stayton Municipal Code, section 17.04.100, defines 

each of these types of housing as: 

 SFD (Single Family Detached): A detached building designed exclusively for occupancy by 1 

family.  

 DUP (Duplex): A building designed exclusively for occupancy by 2 families living independently of 

each other with both dwelling units located on a single lot.  

 MFH (Manufactured Housing): A single family dwelling, transportable in 2 or fewer sections, 

designed to be used for permanent occupancy as a dwelling with a Department of Housing and 

Urban Development (HUD) label certifying that the structure is constructed in accordance with 

the National Manufacture Housing Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974. As amended.  

 MFD (Multifamily Dwelling): A building, located on a single lot of portion thereof designed for 

occupancy by 4 or more families living independently of each other.  

 TRI (Triplex): A building designed exclusively for occupancy by 3 families living independently of 

each other with all dwelling units located on a single lot.  

 SFA (Single Family Attached): A building containing two or more dwelling units, with each 

dwelling unit on a separate lot, but sharing common walls.  

MXD (Mixed-Use) is not defined in this code, but is generally defined as housing containing both a 

commercial and residential use. 

Figure 6: Residential Structures, by Type (City of Stayton) Figure 7: Housing Units, by Type (City of Stayton) 



9 
 

Figure 6 shows the percent of each type of home in Stayton. The SFA and MXD categories contained so 

few homes that they are all included in the “Other” category. This chart indicates that the vast majority 

of housing in Stayton is Single Family Detached, this number being far higher than any other type of 

housing. Only 3% of structures are multifamily housing. Figure 7 shows the percent of units in Stayton 

which are contained in buildings classified as the different housing types. In this chart, as compared to 

the previous one, the proportion of MFD units is much higher. However, 64% of all units in town are 

Single-Family Detached. Figure 8, on the next page, shows a map of Stayton with each residential 

structure colored according to its use. This map shows that MFD housing is generally clustered in certain 

areas of town. DUP and TRI housing is also clustered in specific developments in various parts of town. 

SFD housing is spread out across the entire community, from the historic core to newer developments. 

Very little MFD housing exists near commercial centers. 

  



10 
 

  Figure 8: Map of Residential Buildings, colored by type 



11 
 

Vacant Buildable Lots 
The City of Stayton keeps a record of all vacant buildable lots within the city limits. This database takes 

into consideration a variety of factors, including area, zoning, access to city services, protected areas 

(such as wetlands), among others. Of the current vacant buildable lots, there are 107 which are zoned 

either low or medium density residential. Of the 93 lots which are zoned low density residential, nine 

are large enough to be split into multiple lots (based on the minimum lot size for low density of 16,000 

square feet). Of the 14 medium density lots, five are large enough to split (based on the minimum lot 

size for medium density of 14,000 square feet). 

Based on this spilt, there are 200 additional low density lots available, and 15 additional medium density 

lots. Therefore, there are a total of 308 potential buildable lots within Stayton that are zoned residential. 

24 of these are zoned medium density, while 284 are zoned low density. This shows that there are a 

large number of available lots within the current city limits on which new homes may be built.  

Housing Quality 
There are multiple methods of assessing the quality of housing on a city-wide scale. The U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development has, in the past, distributed mailed surveys to residents 

to assess the overall quality of their own home. These surveys tend to have high feedback rates, and 

match up pretty closely to assessments done by professional building inspectors. This type of inspection 

was outside of the scope of the survey.  

This data was collected using a “Windshield Survey.” In this method, buildings were observed while 

driving by. This method had both benefits and detriments. One benefit is expediency, as this method 

allows a lot of data to be collected in a short period of time with limited manpower. However, this data 

is by necessity limited. Without being able to fully inspect the structures, issues may have been covered 

up and were unable to be seen from the street. Additionally, the data was not collected by a certified 

building inspector.  

In this study, each home was assessed on a variety of factors: Foundation, Stairs/Porch, Roof Exterior 

Surfaces, Access, Exits, and Lot. Each of these criteria was scored on a scale of 1-5, with 5 being the best 

quality. Descriptions follow:  

 Excellent (5): A new or well-maintained structure with no apparent problems and not in need of 

repair.  

 Good (4): A structure in good condition with no major problems, but which has slight aesthetic 

deficiencies. 

 Average (3): A structure which is sound, but in need of minor maintenance to raise it to the 

“good” category.  

 Poor (2): In need of significant maintenance. The structure generally has cracks or breaks in 

walls, foundation, or porches.  

 Deteriorated (1): An uninhabitable and substandard structure with not feasibility for 

rehabilitation.  



12 
 

After this evaluation, an average score for each structure was developed. The final distribution results 

are as follows:  

Table 2: Quality Scores of Homes in Stayton 

Quality Score Total # of Homes Percentage Cumulative  

1 2 .08% - 

2 9 .38% .5% 

3 177 7.5% 8% 

4 1023 43.4% 51.4% 

5 11453 48.6% 100% 

This analysis shows that the housing stock that Stayton currently has is in relatively good condition. Only 

8% of homes are less than “good” condition, with only 11 total in a “poor” or “deteriorated” state.  This 

shows that, at least on a purely qualitative basis, Stayton has a good quality stock of housing. This does 

not include any assessment of aesthetic value or quality. Additionally, the assessment was performed by 

the City of Stayton Economic Development Assistant, not someone who is trained in real estate, 

engineering, or housing assessment. A more detailed and thorough analysis may warrant a different 

result, and would provide a more detailed and comprehensive analysis of Stayton’s housing. 

Conclusion 
Stayton’s housing situation is typical of a rural community. A preponderance of family households leads 

to a high demand for single-family detached homes. As a result, there have been a limited number of 

new Multi-Family homes built in the past 20 years. The town is currently growing at a high pace, and 

future demand may differ from the current housing stock, and may require encouraging the 

development of different types of housing.  

 

                                                           
3 The total number differs from the previously mentioned number of homes in town. This analysis was conducted 
in September 2017, so new building permits have been issued since then. In addition, some homes were not 
assessed because of lack of access. 


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



